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COMPLAINT
TO THE
SUBCOMMITTEE ON ETHICAL CONDUCT
REGARDING THE ACTIONS
OF
SENATOR JEFF HAYDEN

Senators David Hann, Michelle Benson, David Thompson, Eric Pratt, Roger Chamberlain
and Dan Hall, each being first duly sworn, state and allege under oath the following
based upon information and belief:

Corhplaint 1: Sen. Hayden used his influence as a State Senator and Deputy Majority
Leader to unduly influence the Minneapolis School Board to approve a $375,000
contract to an organization that financially benefited his friends and family members.

1.

On March 11, 2013, Sen. Jeff Hayden authored SF 1214, a bill appropriating
$350,000 for a grant to the Minneapolis School District for a community
engagement and empowerment project with Community Standards Initiative (CSI)
to reduce the achievement gap.

According to a StarTribune article dated September 12, 2014 (North Side school
effort called failure), Sen. Hayden and Sen. Bobby Jo Champion “threatened to
withhold state aid if Minneapolis school officials did not approve the contract.”

According to the StarTribune, the Minneapolis School District agreed to contract
with CSI on.their own, without the legislature earmarking specific funds for this

‘purpose.

The Minneapolis School Board subsequently entered into a $375,000 contract with
CSl in May of 2014 without a competitive bid process. The District made the first
payment to CSl in May for $46,875.

Sen. Hayden'’s father, Peter Hayden is known to be associated with and possibly
employed by Community Standards Initiative (CSI). A StarTribune article dated
August 19, 2014 (Mpls. cops fall short on diversity) quoted Peter Hayden as “part
of the Community Standards Initiative, a group seeking more diversity.”

Sen. Hayden has not denied his role in pressuring the Minneapolis School District
to award a contract to a group his father is involved with and possibly receiving
money from, saying only that the idea he and Champion bullied or threatened the
school district is “inappropriate language to use.”

The Minneapolis School Board recently announced CSI has yet to meet its goals
and is not on track to meet its obligations. CSI will not receive additional funds if
they are unable to fulfill the terms of the contract.




10.

11.

12.

C 13,

14

15,

- 16.

Senate Rule 56 provides that. members shall adhere to the highest standard of
ethical conduct as embodied in the Minnesota Constitution, state law and these
rules.

Senate Rule 56,3 provides that improper conduct includes conduct that violates a
rule of the Senate, violates accepted norms of Senate behavior, that betrays the
public trust, or that tends to bring the Senate into dishonor or disrepute.

Senate Rule 56.4 provides that “members of the Senate shall disclose potential
conflicts of interest in the discharge of senatorial duties as prowded in Minnesota
Statutes section 10A.07.”

Minnesota Statutes 10A.07 provides that a public official who in the discharge of
official duties would be required to take an action or make a decision that would
substantially affect the official's financial interests or those of an associated

business, unless the effect on the official is no greater than on other members of
the official's business classification, profession, or occupation, must disclose that

‘action or decision and the nature of the potential conflict of interest to the

presiding officer of their respective body.

Sen. Hayden’s Statement of Economic Interest filed with the Minnesota Campaign
Finance and Public Disclosure Board lists “Non-Profit Administrator” as his
profession.

Sen. Hayden misused his influence as a State Senator and Deputy Majority Leader
to unduly influence the Minneapolis School Board to approve a $375,000 contract
to an organization that financially benefited his friends-and family members, and
possnbly himself,,

There is no evidence Sen, Hayden disclosed his conflict of interest in CSl to the
President of the Senate or the public.

Sen. Hayden’s conduct violates accepted norms of Senate behavior, betrays the
public trust and brings the Senate into dishonor or disrepute.

It is your complainants’ belief that based on the above information Sen. Jeff
Hayden violated Senate Permanent Rule 56.




Compilaint 2: Sen. Hayden participated in the misuse of federal, state and local funding
by accepting trips and other perks such as per diem as a member of the Board of
Community Action Minneapolis.

1

Sen. Hayden serves as a board member for Community Action Minneapolis. Sen.
Hayden appointed his wife, Terri Hayden, to serve on the board in his place.

An August 7, 2014 audit of Community Action Minneapolis by the Minnesota
Department of Human Services found that board members provided inadequate
oversight of operations and that board members and their spouses received
undocumented or unallowable reimbursements for lodging, food, spa treatments
and golf.

The audit by Human Services also found that board members received per diem

payments, which are not established as authorized or allowable payments in‘the
board by-laws, except for reimbursement of expenses for low-income board and
committee members.

Sen. Barb Goodwin (DFL-Columbia Heights) told the StarTribune on September 23,
2014 (Leaders intensify criticism of Community Action of Minneapolis) Sen. Hayden
“had a fiduciary responsibility and he wasn’t watching the money. That’s a bad
thing.” '

Senate Rule 56 provides that members shall adhere to the highest standard of
ethical conduct.

Senate Rule 56.3 provides that “improper conduct includes conduct that violates a
rule of the Senate, violates accepted norms of Senate behavior, that betrays the
public trust, or that tends to bring the Senate into dishonor or disrepute.”

Sen. Hayden's ac'ceptan'ce of perks and per diem as a member of the Community
Action Minneapolis Board violates accepted norms of Senate behavior, betrays the -
public trust and brings the Senate into dishonor or disrepute.

It is your complainants’ belief that based on the above information Sen, Jeff
Hayden violated Senate Permanent Rule 56.

Your complainants ask that the Subcommittee on Ethical Conduct investigate the details
of this matter. Specifically, the Subcommittee should investigate the financial
relationship between Sen. Hayden, his family and CSI. The Subcommittee should also
investigate the specific benefits such as per diem, lodging, golf and spa treatments Sen.
Hayden and his wife received from Community Action Minneapolis. '




Your complainants respectfully request that all hearings on this matter be open to the .
public.

Your complainants ask that the Subcommittee on Ethical Conduct find that Sen. Jeff
Hayden violated Senate Permanent Rule 56 and Minnesota Statutes 10A.07and that it
recommends such disciplinary action as the Subcommittee finds appropriate. -

Date: September 24,2014

Senator David Hann

Senator David Thompson

Senator Eric Pratt

Senator Dan Hall

Senator Michelle Benson

Senator Roger Chamberlain

Subscribed to, and sworn before me, a notary public, on September __, 2014




DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Submission Date: 11/3/2014 :

Minnesota Department of Human Services

Legal Management Office
September 25, 2014

Commissioner of Administration, ¢/o IPAD
Minnesota Department of Administration
201 Administration Building

50 Sherburne Avenue

St. Paul, MN 55155

RE: Request for Advisory Opinion

Dear Commissioner:

This letter requests an advisory opinion from the Commissioner of Administration, regarding the
classification of certain data.

The Internal Audits Office of the Department of Human Services conducted a financial internal audit of
a grantee. See, Minn, Stat. § 13.392. The grantee in this situation is a private non-profit organization,
Community Action of Minneapolis. The final report of the internal andit has been published. During.

the process of conducting the audit, the Internal Audits Office collected supporting documentation for
the reimbursement requests made by the grantee.

This supporting documentation is in a variety of formats, includes data not relevant to documenting the
reimbursement requests, and references data subjects that are neither employees of the grantee nor board
members. In addition, after the internal audit report was published, the grantee sent a lengthy
communication to Internal Audits Office in response to the internal audit report.

The Department requests an advisory opinion on the classification of this supporting documentation; and
the communication sent by the grantee in response to the internal audit report.

The Department has determined that some of the data in the supporting documents, such as credit card
numbers would be private under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.37 as security data. Social Security
numbers would also be classified as private under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.355.

The Department has not been able to find a statute that classifies the data received from a grantee in the
course of conducting a financial internal audit, or the communication sent in response to the internal
audit report. It would appear that absent a statute classifying the data otherwise, the data would be
presumptively public under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03, subdivision 1.

The Department asks whether you agree that these data, the supporting documentation and the

communication sent in response to the audit report, are presumptively public. The Department also
requests that the advisory opinion address whether or not any data should be redacted from the

PO Box 64992 « St, Paul, MN « 55164-0992 « An equal opportunity and veteran-friendly employer



September 25, 2014
Page 2

“documents such as the names or identifying information of data subjects who are not employees of the
grantee or members of the board of the grantee, : '

Please let me know if you would like more detail on the documents, or additional clarification.

Sincerely,

CAROLYN C. SCHWORER
Chief Privacy Official
Department of Human Services
(651) 431-4930
Carolyn.schworer@state.mn.us




201 Administration
Building

50 Sherburne Avenue
St. Paul, MN 55155

Vox: 651.296.6733
800.657.3721
Fax: 0651.205.4219

October 3, 2014
By email
Carolyn Schworer
Chief Privacy Official
Minnesota Department of Human Services
Re:  Your request for a Commissioner of Administration advisory opinion

Dear Ms. Schworer:

IPAD received your advisory opinion request on September 26, 2014. I am writing to inform
you that the Commissioner will not be moving forward with your request at this time. Before
determining if we will proceed, we require additional information/clarification.

Please contact me by phone or email at 651.201.2505 or ianetlhev@state.mn.us.

Sincerely,

LAURIE BEYER-KROPUENSKE
DIRECTOR, COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISIONS

By: “Janet Hey 5
Senior Policy Analyst

Minnesota Department of Administration



~ Minnesota Department of Human Services
: Legal Management Office

October 17,2014

Commissioner of Administration, ¢/o IPAD
Minnesota Department of Administration
201 Administration Building

50 Shetburne Avenue

St. Paul, MN 55155

RE: Request for Advisory Opinion
Dear Con{missioner: _

My letter of September 25, 2014, requested an advisory opinion from the Commissioner of
Administration, regarding the classification of certain data. On October 3, the Information Policy and
Analysis Division requested additional information and clarification. This letter provides the additional
information requested. The representative samples of the supporting documentation and a copy of the
lengthy communication to Internal Audits Office in response to the internal audit report, as requested,
will be forwarded to Janet Hey under separate cover.

The Internal Audits Office of the Department of Human Services conducted a financial internal audit of
a grantee. See Minn. Stat. § 13.392. The grantee in this situation is a private non-profit organization,
Community Action of Minneapolis. The final report of the internal audit has been published.

In the September 25™ request, the Department opined that it appeared that absent a statute classifying the
data otherwise, the data would be presumptively public under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.03,
subdivision 1. However, it has been determined that the grantee, Community Action of Minneapolis, is
a community action agency under Minnesota Statutes, sections 256E.30 to 256E.32, and Minnesota
Rules, Chapter 9571. As such, it is considered a political subdivision subject to the Minnesota
Government Data Practices Act, to the extent it collects, stores, disseminates, and uses dataon
individuals because of a contractual relationship with a government entity. See Minn, Stat. § 13.02,
subd. 11, and Minn. R. 1205.0100, subp. 4. ' ‘

During the process of conducting the audit, the Internal Audits Office collected supporting
documentation for the reimbursement requests made by the grantee. This supporting documentation is
in a variety of formats, intertwines data for which reimbursement under the grant was not requested, and
references data subjects that are neither employees of the grantee nor board members. In addition, after
the internal audit report was published, the grantee sent a lengthy communication to Internal Audits
Office in response to the internal audit report.

PO Box 64992 + St. Paul, MN = 55164-0992 + An equal opportunity and veteran-friendly employér
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The Department requests an advisory opinion on the classification of this supporting documentation and
the communication sent by the grantee in response to the internal audit report.

The Department has determined that some of the data in the supporting documents, such as credit card
numbers would be private under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.37, as security data. Social Security
numbers would also be classified as private under Minnesota Statutes, section 13.355.

The Department is unclear as to how the ,suppo'rting documentation data received from a grantee in the
course of conducting a financial internal audit, or the communication sent in response to the internal

audit report, is properly classified. It appears that because the grantee is a community action agency,
Chapter 13 would apply to the data.

The Department requests your opinion on the classification of the supporting documentation and the
communication sent in response to the audit report. The Department also requests that the advisory
opinion address whether any data should be redacted from the documents, such as the names or
identifying information of various data subjects and data that appears in the supporting documentation
for which the grantee did not request reimbursement under the grant.

- In addition, the Department has paper copies of the grantee’s audit reports dating back to June 30, 2007,

which were prepared by the grantee’s outside auditor. The Department also has electronic copies of
some of the board minutes, but not agendas or documents distributed at board meetings, dating back to

September 2010. The Department requests that the advisory opinion address how these board minutes

and the grantee’s audit reports, prepared by its outside auditor; are claSs1fied in the hands of the
Department

Please let me know if you would like more detail on the documents or additional clarification.

Smcerely,

CAROLYN C. SCHWORER
Chief Privacy Official
Departmerit of Human Services

(651) 431-4930
Carolyn.schworet(@state.mn.us




Minnesota Department of Human Services

November 3, 2014
Via Electronic Mail

Sandra L. Pappas

President, Minnesota Senate

Chair, Senate Subcommittee on Ethical Conduct
323 State Capitol

75 Rev. Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.

Saint Paul, MN 55155-1606

Dear Senator Sandra L. Pappas:

This letter is in response to your letter dated October 30, 2014 that the Department of Human Services
(“Department”) received concerning an ethics complaint filed by Senator Hann and other members
regarding Senator Jeff Hayden’s conduct. Please note the following:

1. Amy Kaldor Akbay, Chief General Counsel, and Charles E. Johnson, Deputy Commissioner, will
be available to testify at the Senate Subcommittee on Ethical Conduct hearing on November 5,
2014. Ms. Akbay can testify to the legal proceedings and privacy concerns and Mr. Johnson can
testify to the Department’s overall obligation and responsibility to provide oversight and
monitoring of grant funds.

2. Attached are copies of the Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. (“CAM”) receivership
pleadings. ’

3. Attached is correspondence between the Department and Admin/IPAD seeking an advisory
opinion regarding disclosure of supporting documentation that the Department’s Internal Audits
Office reviewed to prepare the audit report.

The Department’s public audit report speaks to the nature and scope of the CAM investigation. Due to
data practices questions, the Department has requested an advisory opinion from IPAD. Until we receive
this opinion, we are unable to provide supporting documentation obtained during the course of the
investigation,

Sincerely,

cwle Jpaoon _

Lucinda E. Jesson
Commissioner

PO Box 64998 « Saint Paul, Minnesota * 55164-0998 » An Equal Opportunity and Veteran Friendly Employer



DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
Submission Date: 11/3/2014

STATE OF MINNESOTA DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF RAMSEY SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Case Type: Receivership

Court File No.
In re the Matter of Community Action of MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT
Minneapolis, Inc. OF PETITION TO APPOINT RECEIVER
INTRODUCTION

During a recent audit, Petitioner Minnesota Department of Human Services (“DHS”)
discovered that Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. (“CAM”) had misspent federal and state
grant money administered by DHS for non-grant purposes. Petitioner Minnesota Department of
Commerce (“DOC”) also found problems with CAM’s improper use of grant funds administered
by DOC and is in the process of auditing all of CAM’s expenditures related to DOC grants.
DHS and DOC both terminated their grant contracts with CAM. DHS also terminated CAM’s
recognition as a community action agency under state law. DHS and DOC now seek a
receivership to preserve whatever assets remain so that they can attempt to recoup misspent
funds.

FACTS

A. Grants Administered by DHS

Both the federal government and the State of Minnesota provide financial assistance to
communities to assist in the reduction of poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities,
and the empowerment of low-income families to become self-sufficient. 42 U.S.C. § 9901(1);

Minn. Stat. §§ 256E.30-.32. The financial assistance is provided in the form of a grant to



community action agencies, which use the money to operate programs in furtherance of these
goals. 42 U.S.C. § 9904; Minn. Stat. § 256E.30.

Before an entity can become a community action agency, the political subdivision with
jurisdiction over the area to be served must (1) notify DHS of its intent to designate an entity as a
community action agency; (2) state how the designee is an “eligible entity” under federal law;
(3) submit documents showing designee’s incorporation if applicable, tax exempt status if
applicable, assurance of compliance with the law, a description of the area to be served, and a
proposed mission statement; (4) hold a public hearing regarding the designee’s qualifications,
expertise, and experience in providing community action program services to low-income
people, as well as its mission, proposed services, and goals; (5) pass an official resolution
designating the designee as a community action agency provided that certain criteria was met
throughout the process; and (6) submit the record to DHS to review. Minn. R. 9571.0030.

DHS provisionally recognizes a political subdivision’s designation if it establishes
compliance with applicable state and federal law. Minn. R. 9571.0040, subp. 1. DHS then
requests recognition by the governor. Id., sﬁbp. 2.

Community Action of Minneapolis (“CAM?”) is a non-profit organization formed in 1994
by the city of Minneapolis to utilize community action grants. (Johnson Aff., Ex. A at 6.) CAM
was designated by the City of Minneapolis and recognized by DHS as the community action
agency to serve low-income people who live in Minneapolis. (Hoeft Aff. {5.)

CAM, until recently, had two grant contracts with DHS: (1) Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) Outreach; and (2) a combined Minnesota Community Action Grant
and federal Community Services Block Grant. (Id.  6.) The SNAP Outreach contract allowed

CAM to get reimbursed for up to $27,841.21 to provide SNAP “food support application



assistance and outreach, [and] to improve SNAP participation among the elderly and working

poor in our service area,” which is defined as a 65-ZIP code area of Minneapolis. (Id. {7.)

The combined Community Action Grant and Community Services Block Grant initially

allowed for up $1,759,532 to CAM to:

Strengthen community capabilities for planning and coordinating the use of a broad range
of resources related to the elimination of poverty;

Organize a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and individuals,
so that these services may have a measurable and potentially major impact on the causes
of poverty in the community, helping families and individuals to achieve self-sufficiency;

Make use of innovative and effective community-based approaches to attacking the
causes and effects of poverty and community breakdown;

Maximize participation of residents of low-income communities and members of the
groups served by programs to empower such residents and members to respond to the
unique problems and needs within their communities; and,

Broaden the resource base of programs directed to the elimination of poverty so as to
secure a more active role in the provision of services for private, religious, charitable, and
neighborhood-based organizations as well as individual citizens and business, labor and
professional groups who are able to influence the quantity and quality of opportunities
and services for the poor.

(Hoeft Aff., Ex. B at 1-2.)

The parties amended the contract to allow for an additional $1,074,966 to further serve

the people using the services of CAM. (/d. ] 10, Ex. C.) DHS distributed funds to CAM on a

reimbursement basis. (Id. { 12.) This means that DHS provided funds to CAM as the entity

incurred costs and sought reimbursement for those costs from DHS. (/d.)

DHS had fiscal and programmatic oversight over the grant funding that CAM received

under contract. (Id. | 13.) DHS is required by law to perform on-site monitoring to ensure that

community action agencies like CAM are meeting performance goals, administrative standards,

financial management requirements, and to determine whether agencies are in compliance with

federal and state law. 42 U.S.C. § 9914; Minn. R. 9571.0180. DHS is also required to establish



fiscal control and fund accounting procedures necessary to assure the proper disbursal of and
accounting for grant funds, including procedures for monitoring the funds, and audit the
expenditures of community action agencies. 42 U.S.C. § 9916; see also generally Minn. R.
9571.0140.

In 2013, DHS initiated an audit of CAM. (Johnson Aff. {5.) DHS was aware of a prior
report by the Office of Legislative Auditor that showed problems with CAM’s administration of
grant money under the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). (Id.) DHS
was also concerned about an unusual increase in administrative costs at CAM. (Id.) In addition,
DHS had learned that a key employee at CAM unexpectedly left. (/d.)

The purpose of the audit was to determine if grant funds were being spent in accordance
with the terms of the contract between DHS and CAM and if program outcomes were reasonable
and properly documented. (Id. ] 6.) Auditors reviewed CAM’s internal financial and planﬁing
documents and the work papers of its CPA firm. (Id. at { 7.) The auditors also interviewed
CAM’s financial staff. (Id.)

DHS communicated with staff from CAM in May, June, and July of 2014, including a
formal exit conference, to share the preliminary findings of the audit with CAM and obtain
supporting documentation that CAM had failed to pro.vide DHS. ({d. { 8.) CAM failed to
produce the supporting documentation sought by DHS. (/d.)

On August 12, 2014, DHS issued its final audit report. (Id. §9.) The audit found that
CAM (1) diverted program funds for clients to pay for excessive administrative costs resulting in
a reduction of services, (2) inappropriately allocated over $600,000 in costs associated with non-
DHS programs to DHS grants, and (3) charged at least $200,000 in unallowable costs. (Id., Ex.

A at 10-16.) CAM’s improper use of public funds included, airfare and cell phone roaming



charges for a trip to the Bahamas by the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), airfare to the
Bahamas for a personal friend (i.e. not an employee) of the CEO, airfare for the spouse of a
board member to New York,. golf-related expenses in Florida, food and lodging expenses
including entertainment services for board members and their spouses during an internal training
convention, Celebrity Cruise, car washes, a Costco membership, a personal loan to the CEO to
purchase a car, and excessive bonuses to staff. (Id. at 14-15.)

DHS requested that CAM submit a corrective action plan by September 1, 2014. (Id.
q 13.) On September 5, 2014, CAM sent DHS an untimely proposed corrective action plan that
did not address the deficiencies in the audit report. (Id.  14.)

Based on the audit report’s findings, and the lack of appropriate response from CAM,
DHS terminated its contract with CAM, as well as its recognition as a community action agency.
See Minn. R. 9571.0060, subp. 1, 3. DHS also immediately suspended grant funding to CAM.
(Johnson Aff. 15, Ex. C.) DHS referred approximately 3,000 CAM clients to other social
services agencies. (Hoeft Aff.  16.)

Public reports indicate that all four of CAM’s elected-public-official board members have
resigned. See, e.g., http://www.myfoxtwincities.com/story/26637549/state-terminates-contracts-
with-community-action-of-minneapolis. Community action agencies must have at least 15 board
members. See Minn. Stat. § 256E.31, subd. 3 (regulating board composition of community
action agencies). At least one-third of the board members must be elected public officials
currently holding office, at least one-third of the board members must be persons elected to
represent the “poor in the area served,” and the remainder must be officials or members of
business, industry, labor, etc. See id. It is unknown how many CAM board members remain.

Indeed, even CAM’s purported attorney does not know how many current board members CAM



has or whether the board has a quorum sufficient to conduct business pursuant to its bylaws.
(Akbay Aff. | 3.)

B. Grants Administered by DOC

DOC also providled CAM with grant funding to provide services to low-income
households in Minneapolis. DOC administers and monitors funds appropriated to the Low-
Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) through the U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services. (Harvanko Aff. {] 2, 10; see also 10 C.F.R. 600 et seq.) DOC also is
responsible for administering and monitoring state and federal funding through the U.S.
Department of Energy’s Weatherization >Assistance Program (“WAP”), which is aimed at
installing conservation measures in low-income homes thereby reducing the amount spent on
utility bills and making the homes healthier and safer. (Streff Aff. ¢ 2, 7, 10; see also 10 C.F.R.
440 et seq.)

DOC recently had a LIHEAP contract and a WAP Contract with CAM. (Harvanko Aff.
q6, Exs. A and B.) In 2014, the LIHEAP contract allocated $1,852,083 to CAM to deliver
energy assistance services to" lbw-income individuals residing in the City of Minneapolis.
(Harvanko Aff. ‘1[‘][ 7-8, 11-12)) The WAP Contract allocated $1,328,037 to CAM for
weatherization assistance. (Streff Aff. {7.)

Under both contracts, DOC distributed funds to CAM on a reimbursement basis.
(Harvanko Aff. q 9; Streff Aff. {9.) This means that DOC provided funds to CAM as the entity
incurred costs and sought reimbursement for those costs from DOC. (Id.) DOC recently
distributed $30,000 to CAM for LIHEAP expenditures and $84,500 for WAP expenditures.

(Harvanko Aff. § 11; Streff Aff. { 11.)



By law, DOC had fiscal and programmatic oversight over the grant funding that
Community Action of Minneapolis received under the contracts. (Harvanko Aff. q 2, 10; Streff
Aff. 44 2, 10; 42 U.S.C. § 8624(b)(10); see also 10 C.E.R. 600 et seq; 10 C.F.R. 440 et seq.)
DOC’s monitoring activities included two annual on-site visits to audit program activities and
evaluate CAM’s use of public resources. (Harvanko Aff. | 10.)

Like DHS, DOC discovered while compiling its most recent field monitoring report that
CAM spent over $20,000 in grant funds on unallowable costs. (Streff Aff. { 12.) DOC
terminated its contracts with CAM and initiated an audit of all its expenditures relating to the
LIHEAP and WAP grants. (Harvanko Aff. ] 14-15, Ex. C) DOC will not know the full extent
of unallowable costs charged by CAM to DOC grants until the final audit is completed and the
termination is closed out. (Streff Aff.  12.) CAM is also in possession of a Chevrolet Tahoe
that it purchased with approximately $32,000 of U.S. Department of Energy funds. (Id.) The
truck or the proceeds from the sale of the truck must be returned to DOC. (Id.)

Since DOC sent the termination notice, DOC has worked with a successor agency to
ensure weatherization services to low-income clients in Minneapolis are not delayed or dropped.
(Id. § 17.) DOC also transferred over 12,000 of CAM’s LIHEAP clients and 3,000 applicants to
Community Action Partnership of Suburban Hennepin (“CAPSH”) and contracted with CAPSH
to provide LIHEAP services in the area previously served by CAM. (Harvanko Aff. 17.)

DHS and DOC bring this petition to appoint a receiver to (1) provide an accounting of
CAM’s assets and liabilities; (2) review the expenditures made by CAM and determine which
expenditures were improper; and (3) reimburse DHS and DOC for any expenditures improperly

charged by CAM to the DHS and DOC grants.



ARGUMENT

Under Minnesota law, the Court may appoint a recei\i/er in certain situations, including
(1) “before judgment to protect any party to an action who demonstrates an apparent right to
property that is the subject of the action and is in the possession of an adverse party, and that the
property or its rents and profits are in danger of loss or material impairment”; (2) when an entity
is insolvent or in imminent danger of insolvency; and (3) “in other cases as are provided by law,
or in accord with existing practice.” Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subds. 2, 4, and 6. “A receiver may
be appointed under [Chapter 576] whether or not the motion for appointment of a receiver is
combined with, or is ancillary to, an action seeking a money judgment.” Minn. Stat. § 576.25,
subd. 1. The purpose of a receivership “is to accomplish, as far as practicable, complete justice
for the parties before it. Its object is to secure and hold all property so that it may be available
for the application of the final judgment.” Asleson v. Allison, 188 Minn. 496, 499-500, 247
N.W. 579, 580 (1933). “Appointment of a receiver is within the discretion of the trial court.”
Minn. Hotel Co. v. ROSA Dev. Co., 495 N.W.2d 888, 891 (Minn. Ct. App..1993).
L THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER IS APPROPRIATE BECAUSE CAM Is OBLIGATED

To REIMBURSE DHS AND DOC For THE CoSTS IMPROPERLY CHARGED To DHS

AND DOC GRANTS, AND A RECEIVER IS NECESSARY TO ENSURE THAT REMAINING
ASSETS ARE PRESERVED FOR THAT PURPOSE.

“[A] limited receiver" may be appointed before judgment to protect any party to an action

who demonstrates an apparent right to property that is the subject of the action and is in the

! “‘General receivership’ means a receivership over all or substantially all of the nonexempt
property of a respondent for the purpose of liquidation and distribution to creditors and other
parties in interest.” Minn. Stat. § 576.21(h). “‘Limited receivership’ means a receivership other
than a general receivership.” Minn. Stat. § 576.21(k).



possession of an adverse party, and that the property or its rents and profits are in danger of loss
or material impairment.” Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subd. 2.

DHS and DOC provided CAM with federal and state grant funds to provide services to
low-income families and individuals. (Hoeft Aff., Ex. B at 2; Streff Aff. § 7; Harvanko Aff, {7.)
Pursuant to the grant contracts with DHS and DOC, CAM must reimburse DHS for any amounts
paid by the State for which CAM spent on ineligible costs or for which its books, records or
other documents are not sufficient to clearly substantiate that those amounts were used by CAM
to perform grant services. (Hoeft Aff., Ex. B at 4; see also 42 U.S.C. §§ 9915(a), 9916(a);
Harvanko Aff., Ex. A at §§ 4.3 and 20.4, Ex. B at §§ 4.3 and 20.4.)

During its audit, DHS discovered that CAM spent grant funds on excessive
administrative costs, costs not associated with DHS grant services, and unallowable costs.
(Johnson Aff., Ex. A at 10-16.) For example, CAM used grant funds for airfare and cell phone
roaming charges for a trip to the‘ Bahamas by the CEQ, airfare to the Bahamas for a personal
friend (i.e. not an employee) of the CEO, airfare for the spouse of a board member to New York,
golf-related expenses in Florida, food and lodging expenses including entertainment services for
board members and their spouses during an internal training convention, Celebrity Cruise, car
washes, a Costco membership, a personal loan to the CEO to purchase a car, and excessive
bonuses to staff. (/d. at 14-15.)

DOC likewise discovered that CAM spent over $20,000 of DOC grant funds on
unallowable costs. (Streff Aff. | 12.) In addition, CAM is in possession of a truck purchased
with U.S. Department of Energy funds that must be returned to DOC. (Id.) DOC also recently
provided CAM with over $100,000 for expenditures. (Harvanko Aff. [ 11; Streff Aff. J 11.) It

is unknown if any of that money is still in CAM’s possession.



DHS and DOC are obligated to attempt to recoup State property and the misallocated
and/or misspent funds from CAM. Given the problems identified in the DHS audit, the problems
identified by DOC, the termination of funding and recognition by DHS, the termination of
funding by DOC, and the uncertain status of the board (e.g., its noncompliance with the board
composition requirements of Minnesota law pertaining to community action agencies and
whether it has a sufficient number of members to transact business), there is currently no
assurance that any remaining assets will be preserved by CAM for recoupment. (Sutton Aff.
97.) Therefore, the assets in CAM’s possession are in danger of loss or material impairment,
and the appointmént of a receiver is appropriate under Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subd. 2.

II. THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER IS ALSO APPROPRIATE BECAUSE CAM IS LIKELY
INSOLVENT OR, AT A MINIMUM, IN IMMINENT DANGER OF INSOLVENCY.

“[A] limited or general receiver may be appointed when a corporation or other entity is
.. . insolvent, [or] in imminent danger of insolvency.” Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subd. 4. DHS and
DOC either have terminated or are in the process of terminating all of their grant contracts with
CAM. (Johnson Aff., Ex. C; Harvanko Aff., Ex. C.) The funds from these grant contracts
providedithe vast majority of CAM’s revenue. (Johnson Aff. q 16.) According to financial
statements from 2013, approximately 70% of CAM’s revenue came from DOC grants. (Streff
Aff. [ 6.) With the terminated DHS grants, the percentage of lost revenue is even higher. (Hoeft
Aff.  8.) The loss of these funds, at a minimum, puts CAM in imminent danger of insolvency
(if it is not already insolvent). DHS and DOC have also referred CAM clients to other
organizations. (Hoeft Aff. { 16; Streff Aff. 17, Harvanko Aff. { 17.) Furthermore, DHS
terminated CAM’s recognition as a community action ageﬁcy, making CAM ineligible to receive

community action grants. (Johnson Aff., Ex. C; see also Minn. R. 9571.0060.) In light of the
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foregoing, CAM is likely insolvent or, at a minimum, in imminent danger of insolvency.
Therefore, the appointment of a receiver is appropriate under Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subd. 4.

III. THE APPOINTMENT OF A RECEIVER IS ALSO APPROPRIATE UNDER THE COURT’S
EQuITY POWERS.

“The statutory provisions for appointment of receivers are not exclusive.” Minn. Hotel,
495 N.W.2d at 892. The Court may also appoint a receiver under its equity powers. Id. (citing
Asleson v. Allison, 188 Minn. 496, 247 N.W. 579 (1933)). Equity warrants a receivership to
protect taxpayer funds in light of the problems identified in the DHS audit, the problems
identified by DOC, the substantial amount of public money misspent, the termination of funding
by DHS and DOC, the termination of CAM’s recognition as a community action agency, the
transfer of clients to other community action agencies, and the resignation of numerous board
members. Cf. Green v. th’l Adver. & Amusement Co., 137 Minn. 65, 69-70, 162 N.W. 1056,
1058 (1917) (“[W]here by reason of the misconduct of those controlling the corporation
substantial injury will result to the stockholders, a court of equity may, without statutory
authority and in the absence of corporate insolvency, intervene by way of receivership, require
an accounting from the delinquent officers, order a sale of the corporate assets, and adjudge a
dissolution of the corporation.”).

Minnesota courts have appointed receivers in similar situations. In Bliss v. Griswold, the
supreme court upheld the appointment of a receiver to operate a partnership when evidence of
specific instances of fraud, deceit, and misappropriation of partnership assets established that the
plaintiff, one of the partners, was in imminent danger of serious loss and injury. 222 Minn. 494,
502-03, 25 N.W.2d 302, 307-08 (1946); see also Schmid v. Ballard, 175 Minn. 138, 14243,
220 N.W. 423, 424-25 (1928) (affirming appointment of receiver upon application by minority

shareholders who presented evidence that corporate officers had committed fraud). Similarly,

11



here, CAM misallocated and/or misspent federal and state grant funds provided by DHS and
DOC. A receivership is necessary to protect these taxpayer funds from loss.
CONCLUSION
For the above reasons, DHS and DOC respectfully requests that a receiver of CAM’s

assets be appointed to perform the following duties: (1) provide an accounting of CAM’s assets
and liabilities; (2) review the expenditures made by CAM and determine which expenditures
were improper under the DHS and DOC grants; and (3) repay DHS for any expenditures charged
to the DHS and DOC grants by CAM that are determined to be improper. Once a receiver is
appointed, CAM should immediately deliver to the receiver all assets in its possession, custody,
or control, including, but not limited to, all books and records, electronic data, passwords, access
codes, statements of accounts, deeds, titles or other evidence of ownership, financial statements,
and all other papers and documents related td the receivership property. Minn. Stat. § 576.31.
Dated: October 14, 2014 OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

State of Minnesota

/s/ Jacob Campion

JACOB CAMPION

Assistant Attorney General
Atty. Reg. No. 0391274

445 Minnesota Street, Suite 1100
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2128
(651) 757- 1459 (Voice)

(651) 282-5832 (Fax)
jacob.campion @ag.state.mn.us

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONERS
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STATE OF MINNESOTA DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF RAMSEY SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Case Type: Receivership

Court File No.
In re the Matter of Community Action of NOTICE AND PETITION TO APPOINT
Minneapolis, Inc. RECEIVER BY THE MINNESOTA

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
AND THE MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT
OF COMMERCE

TO: Defendant Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. and its attorneys,

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at a date and time to be determined by the Court, before a
Judge of Ramsey County District Court, at the Ramsey County Courthouse, 15 West Kellogg
Boulevard, St. Paul, Minnesota, counsel for Petitioners Minnesota Department of Human
Services (“DHS”) and Minnesota Department of Commerce (“DOC”) will move for an order
appointing a receiver pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Chapter 576 and Minn. Gen. R. Pract. 137
over Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc (“CAM”) to preserve its assets while DHS and
DOC attempt to recoup grant funds that were improperly spent by CAM.

PETITION TO APPOINT RECEIVER

Defendant CAM is a non-profit organization formed in 1994 by the city of Minneapolis
to utilize community action grants, which are provided by DHS to assist in the reduction of
poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of low-income
families to become self-sufficient. CAM also provided weatherization and energy-assistance

services to low-income families with grant funding provided by DOC.



CAM entered into two grant contracts with DHS and two grant contracts with DOC, in
which DHS and DOC provided funds to CAM for services to low-income families and
individuals in the Minneapolis community. The grant contracts provide that CAM must
reimburse DHS and DOC for any amounts paid by the State for which CAM spent on ineligible
costs or for which its books, records or other documents are not sufficient to clearly substantiate
that those amounts were used by CAM to perform grant services.

On August 12, 2014, the internal audits office of DHS issued an audit report regarding
CAM’s use of grant funds. The audit found that CAM (1) diverted program funds for clients to
pay for excessive administrative costs resulting in a reduction of services, (2) inappropriately
allocated over $600,000 in costs associated with non-DHS programs to DHS grants, and
(3) charged over $200,000 in unallowable costs. DOC also has found problems with CAM’s
improper use of grant funds administered by DOC. DHS and DOC either have terminated or are
in the process of terminating their contracts with CAM, which provide the vast majority of
CAM’s revenue. CAM has not reimbursed DHS or DOC for the amounts that it misspent and/or
misallocated and has therefore breached its grant contracts.

THEREFORE, DHS and DOC hereby petition the Court for an Order as follows:

Granting Petitioner’s motion to appoint a receiver over CAM’s property to: (1) provide
an accounting of CAM’s assets and liabilities; (2) review the expenditures made by CAM and
determine which expenditures were improper expenditures under the DHS and DOC grants;
(3) reimburse DHS and DOC for any expenditures improperly charged by CAM to the DHS and
DOC grants. Under Minn. Stat. § 576.31, the Court should order CAM to immediately deliver to
the receiver all assets in its possession, custody, or control, including, but not limited to, all

books and records, electronic data, passwords, access codes, statements of accounts, deeds, titles



or other evidence of ownership, financial statements, and all other papers and documents related
to the receivership property.

This motion is based on Minnesota Statutes Chapter 576, Minn. Gen. R. Pract. 137, on all
of the files and records of the proceeding herein, as well as the memorandum of law and
supporting affidavits submitted‘with this motion.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 576.25, subd. 7, DHS and DOC request that the Court set an
expedited hearing as soon as practicable. Petitioners are in the process of identifying individuals
that could potentially serve as a receiver over CAM and will provide that information shortly.
Dated: October 14, 2014 ‘

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL
State of Minnesota

/s/ Jacob Campion

Jacob Campion

Assistant Attorney General
Atty. Reg. No. 0391274

445 Minnesota Street, Suite 1100
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2128
(651) 757-1459 (Voice)

(651) 282-5832 (Fax)
jacob.campion@ag.state.mn.us

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONERS



STATE OF MINNESOTA DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF RAMSEY SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Case Type: Receivership

Court File No.

In re the Matter of Community Action of
Minneapolis, Inc.

(Proposed) ORDER APPOINTING
RECEIVER

The above-entitled matter came on for hearing on __, 2014, before
the undersigned pursuant to a Motion to Appoint Receiver brought by the Petitioner

Minnesota Department of Human Services. Nathan Brennaman, Deputy Attorney

General; appeared on behalf of Petitioners. ___, appeared on behalf of
Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.
Based upon the files, records and proceedings herein, including the arguments of
counsel,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT:
1. The Minnesota Department of Human Services and the Minnesota Department
of Commerce’s petition to appoint receiver is GRANTED.

2. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that is appointed as a receiver of CAM’s
assets to perform the following duties, as well as other duties ordered by the Court in

subsequent Orders: (1) provide an accounting of CAM’s assets and liabilities;

(2) review the expenditures made by CAM and determine which expenditures were



Dated:

improper under the DHS and DOC grants; (3) reimburse DHS and DOC for any
exbenditures improperly charged by CAM to the DHS and DOC grants.

CAM shall immediately deliver to the receiver all assets in its possession, custody, or
control, including, but not limited to, all books and records, electronic data,
passwords, access codes, statements of accounts, deeds, titles or other evidence of
ownership, financial statements, and all other papers and documents related to the
receivership property.

The receiver shall have the following powers in addition to those specifically
conferred by chapter 576 or otherwise by statute, rule, or order of the court: (1) the
power to collect, control, manage, conserve, and protect receivership property; (2) the
power to incur and pay expenses incidental to the receiver’s exercise of the powers or
otherwise in the performance of the receiver’s duties; (3) the power to assert rights,
claims, causes of action, or defenses that relate to receivership property; and (4) the
power to seek and obtain instruction from the court with respect to any matter relating
to the receivership property, the exercise of the receiver’s powers, or the performance

of the receiver’s duties.

BY THE COURT:

The Honorable
Judge, Ramsey County District Court



STATE OF MINNESOTA , DISTRICT COURT
COUNTY OF RAMSEY ~ SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT

Case Type: Receivership

Court File No. '

In re the Matter of Community Action of AFFIDAVIT OF AMY KALDOR AKBAY
Minneapolis, Inc.

STATE OF MINNESOTA )
COUNTY OF RAMSEY ; >

I, Amy Kaldor Akbay, being first duly sworn, depose and state as follows:

L I am the General Counsel of the Minnesota Department of Human Services
(“DHS”), and I have personal knowledge of the events recounted in this affidavit.

2. On October 14,.2014, Deputy Attorney General Nathan Brennaman and [
placed a call to attorney Mr. Jon Hopeman, who had indicated to me earlier this month
and during today’s call that he represents Community Action of Minneapolis.

3. During téday’s telephone call, when asked about the identity of current
members of the Community Action §f Minneapolis’ board of directors, Mr. Hopeman
could not identify how many members are curreﬁtly on the board. He also did not identify
which members remain on the board.

4. Although Mr. Hopeman indicated that there had been a board meeting on

October 13, 2014, he stated that he did not attend that meeting and did not know which,



or how many, board members were present. He also could not confirm whether the board
of directors had a quorum sufficient to conduct business pursuant to the entity’s bylaws.

FURTHER YOUR AFFIANT SAYETH NOT.

Dated: October 14, 2014

Subscribed and sworn to before me on
this 14™ day of October, 2014.

Sty 8. o lhorr e

Notary Public
My Commission Expires _/ /J’ / //f
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VEEATHIERIZATION PROGRAM YEAR 2014
Motice of Funds Available
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Minnesota Departmant of Commerce o GRANTEE: Communlty Action of Minneapolls

85 7th Place East, Sulte 500 505 East Grant Strest, Suite 100
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 Minneapolls, MN §5404-9906

Vendor ID: 000021057

Funding S - FundingBnd Frlop “New

Source Date Level Change Level
EAPWX A2104 01/1512015* CFOA #93.588
(6HEAT = EAPWXCO2)

Program $452,342 ($56,819) $395,523
Admiristration $42,437 ($8,842) $33,595

Total: $494,779 ($65,661) $429,118
_EAPWX A2106* 0/30/2016* CFDA # 03,668
(eHEAT = EAPWXCO)
:Program $0 $0 $0

Administration $0 $0 $0

Total: $0 $0 $0
WAP DOE_A2500 6/30/2015 CFDA # 84,042

Program $704,042 $0 $704,042
TITA $31,137 $0 $31,137
Administration $61,697 $0 $61,697

Total: $796,876 $0 $796,876
 PROPANE A2501 6/30/2016 State Funds
‘Program $0 $0 $0
Administration $0 $0 $0

Total: $0 $0 $0

STATE WAP A200 6/30/2015 Slale Funds
Program $0 $0 $0
T/TA $8,780 ($129) $8,651
Administration $0 $0 $0

Total: $8,780 ($129) $8,651

e e N T
6/30/2015 $27,602 $16,600 $44,202
Total Contract - All Sources: $1.528,037 ($49,150) $1,278,847

HOTESY fATURE T
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> EAPWX A2105: Funds will not be released unill A2104 funds have been spent down by al least 80%,
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Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
Year Ended June 30, 2013
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WIPFLI.

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.
Minneapolis, Minnesota

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc., which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related staterments of activities, and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Owr respousibility is to express an opinion on these finaneial stalements based on our audit. We conducted our
awdit in socordance with auditing standards penerally aceepted in the United States and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stendards, ssued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. as of June 30, 2013, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Other Matters
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Other Financial Assistance which is required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements,
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applicd in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 11, 2014, on our
consideration of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters,
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

w%&; LLP

March 11, 2014
Madison, Wisconsin




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2013

Assets

Current assets:

Cash $ 1,236,726
Restricted cash 21,486
Granis receivable 212,465
Accounts receivable 191,122
Other assets 862
Total current assets 1,662,661
Notes receivable, employees 30,254
Property and cquipiuent, net 93,664

JOTAL AS

N 1L786,579

Liabilities an:l Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable/program liabilities $ 99,630
Accrued payroll and related expenses 146,917
" Due to CAMIS 21,486
Total current liabilities 268,033

Long-term liabilities:
Deferred compensation 264,358
Total liabilities 532,391

Net assets:

Unrestricted - Invested in grant-funded equipment 89,100
Unrestricted 1,082,945
_ Total unrestricted net assets 1,172,045
Temporarily restricted - Reach Out for Warmth 31,830
Temporarily restricicd - Weatherization 50,313
Total temporarily restricted net assets 82,143
Total net assets 1,254,188

TOTAL LIABILI 1S5 AND NET ASSETS

$ 1,786,579

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
Revenue;:
Grant revenue $ 4,908,687 $ 0 $ 4,908,687
Contract revenue 1,872,204 0 1,872,204
Other income 32,928 0 32,928
Net assets released from restriction
through satisfaction of program restrictions 46,839 ( 46,839) 0
Total revenue ‘ 6,860,658  ( 46,839) 6,813,819
Expenses;
Program activities:
Salaries and wages 2,231,861 0 2,231,861
Fringe benefits 512,521 0 512,521
Contracted services 133,484 0 133,484
Staff development and training 28,319 0 28,319
Space costs 332,586 0 332,586
Equipment rentals and minor purchases 19,666 0 19,666
Supplies 52,414 0 52,414
Depreciation 17,576 0 17,576
Community program costs 3,397,519 0 3,397,519
Other costs ; 135,461 0 135,461
Total program activities 6,861,407 0 6,861,407
Management and general 421,683 0 421,683
Fund-raising ‘ 6,262 0 6,262
Total expenses 7,289,352 0 7,289,352
Change in net assets ( 428,694) ( 46,839) ( 475,533)
Net assets at beginning of the vear 1,600,739 128,982 1,729,721
Net assets at end of the ycar $ 1,1‘{%()4:‘? $ 42,143 $ 1,254,188
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 4




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Increase (decrease) in cash:
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets 6] 475,533)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 17,576
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash 9,698
Grants receivable 279,728
Accounts receivable 201,395
Other assets 229
Accounts payable ( 445,919)
Accrued payroll and related expenses ( 32,098)
Due to CAMIS ( 9,698)
Net cash used in operating activities ( 454,622)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Issuance of notes receivable ( 15,018)
Collections on notes receivable 11,786
Net cash used in investing activities { 3.232)
Change in cash ( 457,854)
Cash - Beginning of year 1,694,580
Cash - End of year $ 1,236,726
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 5




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statementsb

Note 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Activities

Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. (the “Organization™) develops and provides resources
for assisting low-income individuals in Minneapolis, Minnesota, through a variety of programs,
including:

Energy Programs:

Energy assistance for heating bills

‘Weatherization to imptove energy efficiency

Home electric savings program for conservation education

Children and Families Development Programs:
Advocacy regarding housing and self-sufficiency
Family assets for independence - building program
Self-sufficiency support for women and families
Youth development job readiness and training

The Organization is primarily supported through federal and state government grants, The
Organization received approximately 19% of its total revenue for the year ended June 30, 2013,
from the U.S. Department of Energy for the weatherization program and appreximately 30%
from the U.S, Department of Health and Human Services for the energy assistance program.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Classification of Net Assets

Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations or where
donor imposed stipulations are met in the year of the contribution,

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may
or may not be met, either by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time, When a
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are transferred to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization. Generally, the donors of these assets permit
the Organization to use all or part of the income earned on any related investments for general

or specific purposes. Currently, the Organization does not have permanently restricted net
assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that directly affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts

of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those
estimates,

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of performance contract reimbursements, Management
has determined that no allowance for uncollectible receivables is required based on history and
experience with these organizations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date
of donation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable
asset and is computed using the straight-line method. Property and equipment are items with a
cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life of over one year. The net book value of property and
equipment purchased with grant funds as of June 30, 2013 was $89,100,

Property and equipment acquired with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in
the programs for which they were purchased or in other future authorized programs, However,
the various funding sources have a reversionary interest in assets purchased with grant funds.
Their disposition, as well as the ownership of any proceeds therefrom, is subject to funding
source regulations.

Restricted Cash/Due to CAMIS

The Organization acts as the fiscal agent for the Community Action Management Information
System (CAMIS). Restricted cash and due to CAMIS are funds held by the Organization for
the other nonprofit organizations.




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue Recognition

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes an unconditional prormise to give to the
Organization, Contributions received are reported as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support, depending on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as uprestricted net
assets and reported in the statement of activities as contributions released from restrictions. If
the restriction is met on a contribution in the year the contribution is received, the contribution
is reported as unrestricted revenue.

Conditional promises to give are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are
substantially met and the promises become unconditional,

Grauts are either recorded as contributions or exchange transactions based on criteria contained
in the grant award,

A. Grant Awards that are Contributions

Grants that qualify as contributions are recorded as invoiced to the funding sources,

" Revenue is recognized in the accounting period when the related allowable expenses or
assel acquisition is incurred. Amounts received in excess of expenses or asset
acquisitions are reflected as grant funds received in advance,

B. Grant Awards that are Exchange Transactions

Exchange transactions reimburse based on a predetermined rate for services performed,
The revenue is recognized in the period the service is performed.,

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to
Section 501(a) of the code. The organization is also exempt from state income taxes on the
related income.

The Organization is required to assess whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will
be sustained upon examination on the technical merits of the position assuming the taxing
authority has full knowledge of all information. If the tax position does not meet the more
likely than not recognition threshold, the benefit of that position is not recogunized in the
financial statements. The Organization has determined there are no amounts to record as assets
or liabilities related to uncertain tax positions. Federal returns for the fiscal years ended

June 30, 2010, and beyond remain subject to examination by the Intetnal Revenue Service,




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Cost Allocation

Direct costs are charged directly to the programs they benefit. Joint costs are those costs
incurred for the common benefit of all organization programs, which cannot be readily
identified with a final cost objective, Joint costs are allocated to benefiting programs, primarily
the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) and Energy programs, using various allocation
methods depending on the type of joint cost being allocated.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 11, 2014, which is the date the financial
statements wete available to be issued.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks, Accounts at these institutions are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for up to $250,000. Cash
balances in excess of § 115,000 at one bank are swept daily into repurchase agreements, The
repurchase agrcement is invested in U.S. Government obligations. At June 30, 2013, the
amount in the repurchase agreement was $1,125,905. During the year, bank balances may
exceed FDIC coverage. Management believes these financial institutions have a strong credit
rating and credit risks related to these deposits are minimal.

Notes Receivable, Employees
The Organization has notes receivable agreements as follows:

Loan with a key employee. The agreement provides for the

repayment of the loan in monthly payments of $850 at

0.91% interest until the loan is repaid, on or before January

2015. $ 17,710

Loan with an employee. The agreement provides for the

repayment of the loan in biweekly paymeunts of $212 at

3.75% interest until the loan is repaid, on or before

Decotnber 2015, e M2544

Totalnotes rovelvable, e e e E 30,254




Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2013:

Building and building improvements $ 302,000

Vehicles 111,979

Furniture and office equipment : -~ 017,495

Total property and equipment 1,031,474

Accumulated depreciation - ‘ ( 937 810
Property.and equipment, net R B b 03664

Retirement Plans

The Organization has a membership in Public Employees Retitement Association (PERA),
PERA is available to all the Organization’s employees upon inception of employment with the
Organization. PERA determines the amount of employer and employee contributions. During
the current year, the contribution rate was 7.25%. Retirement benefits are fully vested after
three years of employment; however, total years of employment and employee age at retirement
determine whether benefits will be full or reduced. The Organization’s contributions for the
year ended June 30, 2013, were $140,517.

In addition to PERA, the Organization has a nonqualified deferred contribution plan, which is
available to eligible employees. The pension plan was created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code, Section 457, The plan permits employees to defer a portion of their current
earnings and allows the employer to contribute an amount on behalf of eligible employees. The
plan assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees and are not
available to creditors. The pension plan assets are the property of the covered employees and;
therefore, are not included in these financial statements. The Organization did not contribute to
the plan in the year ended June 30, 2013,

Deferred Compensation
The Organization has an employment agreement with a key employee, The agreement provides
for payment upon employment separation of one month salary per year of tenure, up to eighteen

months maximum, The deferred compensation at June 30, 2013, was $264,358. The
compensation expense for the year ended June 30, 2013, was $0.
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Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Operating Leases

The Organization has entered into various operating lease agreements for facilities with
unrelated parties, Rental expense totaled $167,019 for the year ended June 30,2013, The
future minimum lease obligations under these leases are as follows:

2014 3 137,492
2015 60,481
2016 23,025
2017 70675
Totad - . b 228 6T

Functional Classification of Expenses

The following program and supporting services are reflected in the statement of activities for
the year ended June 30, 2013:

Federal and state programs:

Energy progtams $ 5,654,488
_Children and families development programs o 1.206.919
Total program activities 6,861,407
Management and general 421,683
Fund-raising, » e 0,202
Total expensies - S 7,289,352

Grant Awards

At June 30, 2013, the Organization had commitments under various grants of approximately
$541,000. These commitments are not recognized in the accompanying financial statements as
they are conditional awards,

Program Operations

The Organization has a grant with the State of Minnesota, Department of Commerce for
outreach, intake, eligibility, and certification of LIHEAP-eligible participants, Client benefits
for LIHEAP-eligible participants are subsequently paid directly by the State of Minnesota.
Client benefits in the amount of $5,930,085 paid by the state to clients, certified eligible by the
Organization, are not included in the statement of activities as they were not part of the grant
award.
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Program or

Award Current Expenses
Crantor Agency Progeam Period Amount Grant Other Total
RAME AR Y ENERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE
u.s. a,:af'me 12 of Agriculture
i i GRK%54525 SNAP 2013 Mirnesota Department of 10/01/12-05/30/13 29,129 11,801 0 S 11,801
Human Services
u.s. neyst of Energy
A 28510/1553 DOE/WX Minnesota Department of 07/01/12-06/30/13 769,379 389.3954 264 389.658
Commerce
B29121/1653 ARRA DOE Minnesota Department of 07/01/09-09/15/13 16,790,830 874.438 66,498 940,936
Corrperce
Subtotal 81.042 & 81.042-ARRA 1,263,832 66,762 1,330,594
21t of Health and Human Services
N/A Eunergy Assistance - Participant ~ Minnesota Department of 07/01/312-06/30/13 NA 5,930,085 0 5,930,085
Payments Commerce
30624/1563 Energy Assistance Minnesota Departrment of 10/01/11-09/30/12 2,007,107 129,479 31,501 161,380
Comrmerce
52297/1563  Energy Assistance Minnesota Department of 10/01/12-09/30/13 1,759,281 1,415,957 2,550 1,418,507
Commerce
28510/1564 EAP/WX Carryover FFY 11 Minnesota Department of 07/01/12-12/23/12 361,017 220,490 o] 220,490
: Cammercz
BL888 28510/1564  EAP/WX Carryover FFY 12 Minnesota Department of 07/01/12-06/30/13 1,254,719 244,065 0 244,065
Commerce
Subtotal 93.568 7,940,076 34,451 7,974,527
31927 Community Services Block Minnesota Department of 10/01/11-09/30/13 1,011,412 781,472 0 781,472
Grant 2012 Human Services
31927 Community Services Block Minnesota Department of 10/01/12-06/30/14 449,992 342,872 0 342872
Grant 2013 Human Services
Snbtotal 93.569 1.124344 0 1.124,344
Total Federal Programs 10,340,053 101213 10,441,266
12
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Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.

iz A-2
i of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Other Financial Assistance
Y::za Ended June 30, 2013

e

€A

Program or
Grant Award Current Expenses
2 Number Program Name Grantor Agency Program Period Amount Grant Other Total
s AND LOCAL PROGRAMS
31927 Community Action Minnesota Department of 07/01/12-06/30/13 498719 498,719 0 498,719
Human Services
BIA N/A Reach Out for Warmth Private ~ Donations Ongoing NA 0 38,360 38,360
Total State and Local Programs 498,719 38,360 537.079
Total Federal and Other Financial Assistance 10,838,772 139,573 10,978 345
XARY ACTIVITIES
N/A Low-Income Weatherization Center Point Energy/Minneagasco 01/01/12-123113 N/A 0 1,023,383 1,023,383
Services Agreement
FR N/A Low-Income Weatherization Minnesota Energy Resources 01/01/11-12/31/13 N/A 0 221,686 221,686
Services Agreement Corporation
A N/A XCEL - HESP Xcel Energy 01/01/10-12/31/13 N/A 0 826,008 826,008
A N/A CAM Corp. Activities Interest and Miscellaneous 07/01/12-06/30/13 N/A i 170,015 170,015
Total Discretionary Activities 0 2,241,092 2,241,092
TOTAL AMOUNT S 10,838,772 § 2,380,665 $ 13,219,437

Hoicis to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Other Financial Assistance

*otz 1 - Basis of Presentation
The

- Action of Minneapolis, Inc.
ote 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
ertain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as 10 reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

Mote 3 - Program Operations
< in CFDA #93.568 are client benefits paid by the State of Minnesota of $5,930,085. These expenditures are not included in the statement of activities.

See |

sependent Auditor's Report.

2 schedule of expenditures of federal awards and other financial assistance (the “Schedule™) includes the federal grant activity of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the
i June 30 2013, The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenis, and Non-Profit
. Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc,, it is not intended to and does not present the finzncial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of

+; reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations,
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WIPFLIi.

independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Contro! Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters

Board of Directors
Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.
Minneapolis, Minnesota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc, which comprise
the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 11, 2014,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community Action of Minneapolis,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action of Minneapolis,
Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, ora
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance,

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify .all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal contro! that
we consider to be material weaknesses, However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

(gt LLF

Wipfli LLP

March 11, 2014
Madison, Wisconsin
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WIPFLL

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance

Board of Directors
Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.
Minneapolis, Minnesota

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S, Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013,
Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of audit results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’'s Responsibility

Management of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. is responsible for compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above, We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program, However, our audit does not provide legal determination of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30,2013,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance over comphance Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectweness
of Community Action of Minneapolis, Inc.'s internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis, A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than g material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 